
Berkeley Fire/OES 2100 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way, Berkeley, CA 94704 
Tel. 510.981-3473  TDD: 510 981-5799 

E-mail: fire@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
 

AGENDA 
Disaster Fire and Safety Commission 

February 23, 2022 
7:00 PM 

 
District 1 – Kim-Mai Cutler 

 
District 2 – Weldon Bradstreet  

 
District 3 –                 

 
District 4 – Antoinette Stein 

 

District 5 – Shirley Dean 
 

District 6 – Nancy Rader 
 

District 7 –  
 

District 8 – Paul Degenkolb 

Mayor’s Appointee- Jose Luis Bedolla 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the 
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom 
videoconference. The COVID-19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the 
members to meet safely in person and presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no 
physical meeting location will be available.  
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this 
URL https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83604595954 If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, 
then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to 
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 and enter Meeting ID . 836 0459 5954 If you wish to comment 
during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
Please be mindful that all other rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Commission meetings 
conducted by teleconference or videoconference 
 
Preliminary Matters  

Call to Order 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters 
 

1. Fire Department Staff Report * 
a. Measure FF Report Schedule 
b. Measure GG Report Schedule 
c. Department Activities 

i. Overall Call Metrices 
ii. Special Reports 

iii. Commission Actions Status 

Consent Items 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83604595954


Berkeley Fire/OES 2100 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way, Berkeley, CA 94704 
Tel. 510.981-3473  TDD: 510 981-5799 

E-mail: fire@ci.berkeley.ca.us 
 

2. Approval of Draft Minutes of Meeting of January 26, 2022* 

Action Items 

3. Annual Election of Officers 

4. Recommendation to City Council on Frequency of Financial Reporting for Measure GG and 
Measure FF (Bedolla, Rader)* 

5. Recommendation to City Council on the Cal-OES/FEMA Grant Application (Rader) 

Discussion Items 

6. Recommendation to City Council on the Definition of Defensible Space for Wildfire (Dean) 

7. Commission Workplan (Bedolla) 

8. Commission Plan for Input for the City’s Budget Cycle (Bedolla) 

9. Community Wildfire Protection Plan Public Engagement and Scope (Bedolla, Rader)* 

10. Hillside Fire Safety Group (Community Presentation) 

11. Safer from Wildfires Public Education (Rader)* 

12. Future Agenda Items and Next Steps 

 
Adjournment 

 



 

1 
  

    Disaster & Fire Safety Commission 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday January 26, 2022 
 

Present: Jose Luis Bedolla, Shirley Dean, Weldon Bradstreet, Nancy Rader, Toni Stein, Paul 
Degenkolb 

 
Absent:   Kim-Mai Cutler (Excused) 
 
Staff:   Khin Chin, Keith May, Abraham Roman, David Sprague, Steve Riggs, 
 
Public: Attendees 13: Chris Cullander, Pam Gleason, Henry DeNero, Marcus von Engel, 

Holly Singh, Benay Dara-Abrams, Kathleen E. Kelly, Alec Dara-Abrams, 
kellyhammargren iPad, Nancy Gillette, normalydon, Richard Thomason, 
15108414896 

 

Preliminary Matters 

Call to Order 
J. Bedolla called meeting to order at 7:00pm 

 
Approval of the Agenda 
Approved by Acclimation 

 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

  
Kelly Hammargren: I attended the Council Meeting January, 25, 2022 and I did stay until 
12:50 am. I was concerned that Oakland has stricter rules on density than proposed for 
Berkeley. And, Oakland has better evacuation routes. I was concerned by the map from 
Bryce Nesbitt on the earthquake zone and that construction in an earthquake zone 
requires assessment by geologist. In all the Zoning Adjustment Board meetings and 
Design Review Committee meetings I have never heard mention of this requirement. 
Councilmember Robinson responded to my statement of District 7 being in the high fire 
zone, that the frat houses are in the high fire zone. I said today to a friend, "what could 
possibly go wrong with frat houses in a high fire zone." We need to be doing more with 
education for students regarding the high fire zones. 

 
Marcus von Engel: My name is Marcus von Engel. As a Berkeley resident I want to 
thank the commission members for their critical role. When I moved to Berkeley, it was 
stunningly clear to me that I needed to get involved to mitigate the explosive fire danger 
we have. This has included supporting the documentation of the dangers in our city, 



 

2 
  

spending weekends working in the hills to remove eucalyptus fuel as a vice president in 
our Hillside Fire Safety Group, by coordinating nearly 200 students, and thousands of 
dollars in donated funds by our residents, as well as personal cash donations. 

Growing up on a ranch in Monterey County, as well as living in Southern California, I 
came to understand the importance of being proactive. We only need to consider recent 
fires in cities similar to Berkeley to understand the danger: 

- 91’ Oakland Hills fire, destroyed 2800 homes, causing 25 deaths 

- 93’ Laguna Beach fire, 500 homes, including the home of one of my best friends 

- 2017 Tubbs Fire in Santa Rosa, $1.2B in damage, 5600 structures destroyed, over 20 

people that died 

- 2018 Woolsley Fire in Southern California, that destroyed 1,600 structures, and 

prompted the evacuation of nearly 300,000 people 

All these fires have a few things in common: 

1) Preventable loss of life 

2) Property damage measured in the billions of dollars 

3) Fires that spread incredibly fast because there was limited actions to mitigate the 
spread 

4) And they all started as a small fire 

Another catastrophic fire in Berkeley is not a question of ‘if’ – but rather of ‘when’ 

We could have a situation that will be worse than Tubbs, Woosley, Laguna Beach, and 
Oakland fires …. combined. 

Please, our ask: 

● First, Work with the Hillside Fire Safety Group volunteers to support our awareness 
and fuel reduction efforts 

● Second, Implement and enforce existing mandatory fuel reduction initiatives with 

homeowners 

● Third, invest the collected Measure FF funds to drastically reduce the fuel situation in 

Berkeley. 



 

3 
  

We have the opportunity through volunteer activities and wise spending of collected 
Measure FF funds to reduce fuel on public and private lands, and for the City of Berkeley 
to be seen as a leader in preventing a catastrophic fire from making national newspaper 
headlines. Thank you 

 
Holly Singh: Hello, my name is Holly Singh, I am a proud 4th generation Berkeleyan and 
a member of the Hillside fire safety group.  When my grandparents bought our home on 
Le Roy, next to the La Loma Steps, the original owners gave them two photos of the 
devastation wrought by the 1923 Fire.  Looking east from the steps, one can see the 
outline of our garage. Looking West from the steps, the photo shows a chimney with a 
clawfoot tub at its base-beyond that, an incinerated wasteland.  

 
I’ve often thought of the people and animals who lived in the Berkeley at that time.  How 
fast the fire must have come and how difficult it must have been to escape, if indeed they 
survived.  If a firestorm hit us today, as it very easily could, given the unmaintained 
groves of eucalyptus trees coming down the hills, we would not fare any better.  Able 
bodied people may well get out with their lives, perhaps with the clothes on their backs, 
but the elderly, not so able bodied and persons with disabilities would likely perish, 
suffering greatly in the process.  I think if the fire hit my neighborhood I would have to 
heft my elderly mother on my back and urge my uncle, who has autism and no sense of 
speed, down to the street, hoping to escape with our lives.  What of our residents who 
have no one to help them?  
 
I am urging you to put Measure FF funds into fire mitigation efforts.  Clean up the 
eucalyptus groves and keep Berkeley safe.  Thank you.  
 
 
Alec Dara-Abrams: Hello, I'm Alec Dara-Abrams. My wife and I moved to Berkeley 
eight years ago - near Cedar and Euclid. As a Berkeley voter back in November of 2020, 
when we looked over the ballot summary of Measure FF, the City Attorney's impartial 
analysis, as well as the full text of the Measure, we saw nothing about restrictions to 
fund vegetation management or hazard reduction only on particular types of property in 
Berkeley. 
 
The full text of the Ordinance referring to wildfires says: 
The proceeds of the tax imposed by this Chapter shall be placed in a special fund to be 
used only for the purpose of enhancing public safety by funding the following: 
...  



 

4 
  

3. Wildfire prevention and preparedness activities including, but not limited to, 
vegetation management, hazard mitigation, public education, evacuation 
planning, and an emergency alert system. 
There is no distinction in the Measure between public and private lands. So, when we 
voted for Measure FF as Berkeley taxpayers who would gladly be providing the money, 
we had no idea that Measure FF funds would be prohibited from being used to mitigate 
public wildfire hazards on private land. 
I can't see why Berkeley public safety hazards can't be reduced using FF funds wherever 
the hazards are located. 
Thank you for the opportunity to speak.. 
 
Henry DeNero: As President of the Hillside Association of Berkeley and the Hillside Fire 
Safety Group representing over 2,500 residents, I again urge you to use Measure FF to 
immediately clean up the grounds under the Eucalyptus groves in North Berkeley, 
including those on private land. There is nothing in Measure FF that prohibits this. 
 
The fuel under these groves, combined with the fact that a fire on the ground can climb 
the trees into the canopy, makes this condition a threat to the entire City 
 
It was former Fire Chief Brannigan who said that a fire coming over the ridge could burn 
all the way to the Bay 
 
We were stunned by high winds this past weekend and a fire in Big Sur that the 
authorities called a “Surreal event” 
 
The Eucalyptus groves represent far and away the most significant fire risk because of 
their high, flammable canopies, and the fact that a fire on the ground can ignite the 
canopies. This is well documented by scientists, foresters, and experience 
 
The 1991 Tunnel Fire destroyed 900 homes in the first hour. No reasonable person can 
assert that the Eucalyptus tree is not a highly flammable and dangerous species 
 
That is why the City should immediately clean up under the groves, including removing 
loose bark, low branches, saplings and subordinate trees 
 
There are fewer than 1,000 Eucalyptus trees in North Berkeley in 13 groves. Half are on 
UC Berkeley and Berkeley Labs grounds, AND THEY ARE IN THE PROCESS OR 
HAVE COMMITTED TO CLEAN THEM UP BEFORE THIS YEAR’S FIRE SEASON 
 
It is time for the City to clean up the other half with equal urgency 



 

5 
  

 
The groves in the City could be cleaned up for a few hundred thousand dollars by 
landscape contractors. Yet the City sits on millions of Measure FF dollars with no 
effective plan to reduce fire risk 
 
Cleaning up under all these trees, THIS WINTER, BEFORE THIS YEAR’S fire season, 
will eliminate one of the two ways by which a catastrophic firestorm can kill dozens and 
destroy a large part of the city. Thank you. 
 
Nancy Rader provided a summary of the City Council discussion on ADUs and 
limitations in the fire zones. 
 
Shirley Dean said that it sounds like the State has more authority than previously thought 
on this topic of housing and ADUs in the hazard zones. 

  
1. Fire Department Staff Report 

 
DFSC Staff Report 

January 26th, 2022 

 

1. Measure FF Monthly Report 
a. Budget Overview – 

i. Program Review 
1. Standards of Coverage Analysis – No new updates. 

 
2. Project Management and Subject Matter Expert (SME) – No new 

updates. 
 

3. Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) – We are working through 
the contract with Wildland Resource Management. It is near 
completion. The CWPP will include both private and public land. It will 
also provide a prioritized list of Projects on both private and public land.  

 
This is a key geospatial analysis of the wildland risk that our community 
faces. It will result in a comprehensive guide that will drive all our 
actions surrounding WUI fire prevention in our community. 
 



 

6 
  

4. Wildfire Prevention / Mitigation – Vegetation Management 
Inspections – No new updates.  

 
 

5. Retired Annuitants –  We onboarding five new inspectors and hope to 
have them in the field in February. 
 

6. Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) and Paramedic Recruitment – No 
new updates. 

 
7. Dispatch Re-Design – We had the kick-off meeting with Federal 

Engineering, the consultant who will conduct this work. They have 
begun the process of gathering data to perform their analysis. 

 
8. Recruitments: 

 
a. Shift Fire Inspector Recruitment – Interviews for Shift Inspectors 

will begin the week of January 24th. These are filled by existing 
fire department personnel and are used to assist with fire 
investigations and other inspection related activities in the built 
environment.  

b. Sworn Fire Inspector Recruitment – Recruitment is on-going. 
We will also begin interviewing the first batch of 14 applicants, 
the week of January 24th.  

 
9. Division of Training Property – No new updates. 

 
 

ii. Implementation & Metrics 
1. Outdoor Warning System – We are working through the permitting 

process with the City of Berkeley and the vendor. Working on BUSD 
MOU. 

iii. RFP Updates 
b. Program Specific Reports 

i. Defensible Space Inspection Updates 
Vegetation Management Inspections – Annuitants  

 
 



 

7 
  

 

 
ii. Other 

 
2. Measure GG Monthly Report  

a. Emergency Services Coordinator Position 
i. Job Announcement will post to the City’s Website on January 31st.  

 
b. Budget Overview 

i. RFP Updates – In the early stages of developing an RFP for an Evacuation Time 
Estimate Study for the City of Berkeley.  

 
3. Department Activities 

a. Grants – The Cal OES Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant is still being worked through. The 
State did push out the deadline for submission of the Notice of Intent (NOI) to February 
15th.  

b. In the early morning hours of January 15th, OES Staff received a Tsunami Advisory from 
the California Tsunami Program that a Tsunami Advisory (tsunami wave heights of 0.3-
1.0 meter) was issued for the entire California Coastal Area. 
 
City staff moved quickly to make sure we alerted those in the marina as quickly as 
possible. We sent out police officers, firefighters, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront 
staff, parking enforcement officers, and others to notify those living in boats to move to 
higher ground. We used all tools to notify people and keep them out of the marina. We 
used AC Alert to send voice calls, text messages and emails specifically to Marina 
residents and businesses. We also sent a citywide Nixle to inform the community of the 
situation. In addition, City staff made personal calls to Marina berthers to ensure they 
had evacuated. In the event that there was any confusion among affected people in the 
Marina, civilian and sworn staff were present in the Marina to explain the situation, and 
Marina staff continued to answer the Waterfront Office phone number throughout the 
event. This layered, very personal outreach reflected the very high level of concern to 
help those who might be affected and address any questions that might arise. 

As of: 1/21/2022

Inspected
No Violation 

Found
Violations 

Found
Re-Inspection

Required
Re-Inspection 

Completed

Re-Inspection 
No Violation 

Found

Re-Inspection 
w/Violations 

Found
Frankel 427 380 47 47 2 2
Higgins 383 326 57 57 2 2

Lee 116 81 35 35 137 119 18
McCracken 102 70 32 32 93 65 28

Pinto 15 7 8 8 91 77 14
Ward 326 216 110 110 129 63 66

Williams 795 721 74 74 4 4
Totals 2164 1801 363 363 458 332 126

Vegetation Management Inspections

AI Inspections



 

8 
  

 
The Tsunami Advisory affecting the Berkeley Marina was canceled at 7:52pm. There 
were no reported injuries or damage during the Advisory. 
 

4. Call Volume Report 

 

Fire Department Report by California Incident Type 

November 29, 2021 – January 18, 2022 

  

Fires – including Encampment 
Fires (structures, mobile 
properties, vegetation, rubbish, 
equipment, cooking, chimney, 

55  

Encampment Fires (structures, 
warming/cooking, debris) 

20  

Explosion - no fire (overpressure 
ruptures, explosions) 

2  

Rescue & EMS (medical assist, 
vehicle accident  

1,353  

Hazardous Condition - no fire 
(combustible spills/leaks, 
chemical release, radioactive 
condition, electrical wiring 
problem, biological hazard, 
potential accident w/ 
building/aircraft/vehicles) 

99  

Service Calls (person in distress, 
water issue, smoke/odor 
problem, animal issue, public 
assist, cover 
assignment/standby) 

174  

Good Intent (canceled en-route, 
wrong location, nothing found, 
steam mistaken for smoke) 

143  

False Alarm Calls (malicious, 
malfunction, unintentional, 
biohazard scare) 

271  



 

9 
  

Severe WX (lightening, wind 
storms) 

2  

Special Incidents (citizen 
complaints) 

2  

TOTAL 1,751  

 

Unit Utilization Apparatus Count 4,477 

 
Consent Items 

2. Approval of Draft Minutes of Meeting of December 1, 2021* 

Motion to approve the minutes as revised: Dean  
Second: Stein 
Vote:  5 Ayes: Bedolla, Degenkolb, Dean, Bradstreet, Stein; 0 Noes; 2 Absent: Cutler, 
Simmons; 1 Abstain: Rader 

Action Items 

 

Discussion Items 

3. Definition of Defensible Space (Dean) 

4. Policy on Eucalyptus trees removal and suppression (Dean)  

5. Criteria for Use of a Portion of Measure FF funds for Vegetation Clearance on Private 
Land (Rader)* 

W. Bradstreet left the meeting at 835pm 

W. Bradstreet returned to the meeting at 839pm 

6. Providing More Budget Details for Measure GG vs General Fund Allocation for 
Overtime (Bedolla) 

7. Timeline for Input for the City’s Budget Cycle (Dean) 

8. Process for Annual Election of Chair and Vice Chair (Bedolla) 

9. Commission Workplan (Bedolla) 

10. Future Agenda Items and Next Steps 



 

10 
  

Adjournment 

Motion to Adjourn: Rader 
Second: Bradstreet 
Vote:  6 Ayes: Bedolla, Degenkolb, Dean, Bradstreet, Stein, Rader; 0 Noes; 2 Absent: 
Cutler, Simmons; 0 Abstain:  
 
Adjourned at 8:56p 



DFSC Staff Report 

February 23rd, 2022 

 

1. Measure FF Monthly Report 
a. Budget Overview – 

i. Program Review 
1. Standards of Coverage Analysis – No new updates. 

 
2. Project Management and Subject Matter Expert (SME) – No new 

updates. 
 

3. Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) – No new updates. 
 

4. Wildfire Prevention / Mitigation – Vegetation Management 
Inspections – See chart below.  
 

5. Retired Annuitants – The newest retired Annuitants have started and 
are actively doing inspections.  
 

6. Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) and Paramedic Recruitment – No 
new updates. 

 
7. Dispatch Re-Design – No new updates. 

 
8. Recruitments: 

 
a. Shift Fire Inspector Recruitment – Interviews for Shift Inspectors 

will begin the week of January 24th. These are filled by existing 
fire department personnel and are used to assist with fire 
investigations and other inspection related activities in the built 
environment.  

b. Sworn Fire Inspector Recruitment – Recruitment is on-going. 
We will also begin interviewing the first batch of 14 applicants, 
the week of January 24th.  

 
9. Division of Training Property – No new updates. 

 
 

ii. Implementation & Metrics 
1. Outdoor Warning System – We are working through the permitting 

process with the City of Berkeley and the vendor. Awaiting BUSD final 
approval.  



iii. RFP Updates 
b. Program Specific Reports 

i. Defensible Space Inspection Updates 
Vegetation Management Inspections – Annuitants  

 
 

 

 
ii. Other 

 
2. Measure GG Monthly Report  

a. Emergency Services Coordinator Position 
i. Recruitment is in process and will close on April 2, 2022.  

 
b. Budget Overview 

i. RFP Updates – No new updates. 
 

3. Department Activities 
a. Fire Prevention Division 

i. Interviewed 3 internal candidates for Sworn Fire Inspector position with one 
getting promoted 2/20/2022, depending on staffing will promote the other 
candidates. 

ii. 4 external candidates are in background checks, which is a minimum 6 week 
process.  



iii. Have one retired annuitant assigned to the Fire Prevention Division. He is 
helping with annual inspections, citizen complaints, and indoor entertainment 
inspections 

iv. Interviewed firefighters for Shift Fire Inspectors at the end of January…all were 
good candidates. Staff is discussing when to start them on the three year 
program. 

b. FEMA grant administered by Cal OES.  
i. We submitted 2 Notices of Intent: 

1. Project to develop 2024 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
2. Project to create a program to provide vegetation management 

assistance to create defensible space on private properties in Fire Zones 
2 and 3.  

ii. Submitting a NOI is the first step in the process. Notices of Intent that Cal OES 
considers promising will be invited to complete second step - subapplication, 
which is very time consuming, requiring considerable detail and completion of a 
FEMA Benefit-Cost Analysis to determine project eligibility.  

iii. We have been invited to the subapplication process for the LHMP project. We 
haven't heard back yet on the vegetation management project. 

c. We reached out to EBMUD about their vegetation management process at all of their 
sites in and around the Berkeley area. EBMUD maintains approximately 300 sites 
according to their internal program along with support from their consultant 
Blankenship Associates. I have attached the IPM Guidelines in the packet.  EBMUD also 
have decision making documents for each site that are reviewed and updated annually. 
Each site is inspected monthly. Generally speaking their weed abatement methods 
include mechanical means such as string trimmers and mowers, goat grazing where 
appropriate and lastly herbicide applications. they also use Civicorps crews who mainly 
use string trimmers. 

d. Commission Actions Status 

Date of 
Commission 
Action 

Topic 

R
e
s
u
l
t 

Description 
of result Notes 

9/22/2021 
Enforcement of Existing 
Parking Rules and Regulations     

In Agenda Process for 3/8 City 
Council Meeting 

9/22/2021 
Long Range Development Plan 
for UC Berkeley     

Staff Review for Response; Fire 
Department 

10/27/2021 

Recommendation to identify 
High Risk Areas that are 
exempt from State Imposed 
Housing Increases Due to 
Public Safety Considerations      

In Agenda Process for 3/22 City 
Council Meeting 

12/1/2021 
Measure FF Oversight 
Recommendation- revised     

Staff Review for Response; Fire 
Department 



 
4. Call Volume Report 

 

Fire Department Report by California Incident Type 

January 19, 2022 – February 12, 2022 

  

Fires – including Encampment 
Fires (structures, mobile 
properties, vegetation, rubbish, 
equipment, cooking, chimney, 

22  

Encampment Fires (structures, 
warming/cooking, debris) 

10  

Explosion - no fire (overpressure 
ruptures, explosions) 

0  

Rescue & EMS (medical assist, 
vehicle accident  

667  

Hazardous Condition - no fire 
(combustible spills/leaks, 
chemical release, radioactive 
condition, electrical wiring 
problem, biological hazard, 
potential accident w/ 
building/aircraft/vehicles) 

76  

Service Calls (person in distress, 
water issue, smoke/odor 
problem, animal issue, public 
assist, cover 
assignment/standby) 

63  

Good Intent (canceled en-route, 
wrong location, nothing found, 
steam mistaken for smoke) 

69  

False Alarm Calls (malicious, 
malfunction, unintentional, 
biohazard scare) 

157  

Severe WX (lightening, wind 
storms) 

0  



Special Incidents (citizen 
complaints) 

1  

TOTAL 1,065  

 

Unit Utilization Apparatus Count 2,299 

 

 



EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
April 2021 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The East Bay Municipal Utility District (District) is responsible for implementing pest control 
management practices across approximately 57,000 acres of watershed lands and reservoirs in 
the East Bay and Sierra foothills. This includes multiple recreation areas, over 100 miles of 
rights-of-way along our aqueducts, facility grounds at hundreds of sites in five counties and other 
areas located throughout the District’s water source and service areas. Pests may include a wide 
range of both plant and animal species capable of creating a nuisance; however, the predominant 
pest addressed by the District is invasive vegetation. Within the District’s footprint, pests are 
managed for a number of reasons including but not limited to human health and safety, 
protection of infrastructure, regulatory requirements, fire risk reduction and preservation of 
habitat and biodiversity. The District is committed to using the most environmentally safe 
practices for pest control to ensure the health and safety of the public and District employees, 
and to protect potable water quality, natural resources and public and private property.   

The District established an Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program in the 1990s to develop a 
consistent approach toward pest management throughout the District using a combination of 
physical, biological and cultural controls and includes the use and monitoring of pesticides, 
which predominantly consist of herbicides. The IPM program provides written guidance for 
determining the most appropriate pest control methods for a particular situation. Ever evolving 
IPM procedures and practices are developed with input from industry and academic experts and 
staff having pest management responsibilities to ensure they are implementable and effective. 
IPM is an iterative program and procedures change over time to ensure they are practical, 
effective and current in terms of technologies and regulations.                                                                                                                                                             

In 2015, the District initiated a comprehensive review of its IPM program. This review was 
initiated by customer interest and a desire to better understand and quantify which pest control 
methods were in use across the organization. In 2017, an independent third-party expert was 
contracted to conduct a detailed analysis of the program. Blankinship and Associates provided a 
final assessment in early 2018 with key recommendations for the District to implement to 
advance its IPM program. The recommendations were evaluated and implemented in 2018 and 
2019.  Results were tracked to assess progress, efficacy and identify opportunities for 
enhancement. For the first time, IPM activity details such as treatment methods, treatment sites, 
acres treated and pesticide application details (e.g., quantity of product used, application rate, and 
application method) were recorded by field staff and collected in a centralized location to help 
inform future IPM activities. This new information about program performance has led to an 
update of the IPM Program guidelines to accurately reflect current practices. 

The District uses a variety of pest management tools and strives to minimize pesticide use to the 
maximum extent practicable. Alternative non-pesticide methods are always considered before 



 Page 2 
 

pesticide use. Staff works with California Department of Pesticide Regulation (DPR) licensed 
Pest Control Advisers (PCA) to review the use of pesticides to ensure that pesticide use is 
warranted, appropriate environmental characteristics such as species, their habitat, and water 
quality are considered and that pesticide use is consistent with the label and in full compliance 
with applicable regulations. The District has an established process to evaluate new pesticides 
prior to allowing use at any District sites. 

The IPM program is structured to ensure consistency across the organization. Administration is 
overseen by the Environmental Compliance Section (ECS) of the Regulatory Compliance Office 
(RCO). ECS is tasked with general oversight to support compliance, monitoring, reporting, 
training and coordination among various work units to promote consistency and information 
exchange. Each work unit responsible for implementing IPM develops their own reports 
summarizing data such as the types and locations of pest management techniques employed 
throughout the District, including pesticide application details, if applicable. Larger 
programmatic-wide reports are overseen by ECS for purposes of reporting out to the District’s 
management, Board of Directors and the public. ECS also organizes training and information 
exchange forums as needed. 
 
The IPM program covers activities by District employees on District property.  District 
contractors and tenants operating on District property are required to adhere to District IPM 
principles. 
 
The District provides reliable, high-quality drinking water and wastewater service through 
sustainable activities that avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse effects to the environment. Our 
sustainability policy directs us to use resources in a responsible manner that meets the needs of 
today without compromising the ability of future generations to meet the needs of tomorrow. To 
this end the District will minimize pesticide use over time to the maximum extent feasible. The 
District is committed to building and maintaining a transparent and comprehensive IPM 
program. Feedback and engagement from community members have provided valuable ideas and 
recommendations that have helped shape the program. We will continue to keep our community 
stakeholders informed about our IPM practices and participate in meaningful outreach as the 
work moves forward.  
 

DEFINITIONS OF KEY TERMS 

 
Action Threshold: The level of pests or pest damage that can be tolerated before a control action 
must be initiated. Thresholds may be based on factors such as anticipated employee and public 
health and safety, operational impacts, regulatory requirements (i.e., fire codes) and damage to 
property and infrastructure. 
 
Agricultural Pesticide Use:  In California, per, Food and Agricultural Code (FAC) § 11408, this 
refers to all pest control use that does fit into specified non-agricultural use categories (i.e., 
home, industrial, institutional, structural, vector control, veterinarian). This includes production 
and non-production agriculture in watersheds, rights-of-way, landscaped areas (e.g., golf courses, 
parks, recreation areas, and cemeteries), etc. 



 Page 3 
 

 
California Restricted Materials: Pesticides that have been determined by DPR as having the 
potential to cause unreasonable adverse effects to the environment and injury to applicators or 
bystanders without added restrictions. The use of California Restricted Materials requires a 
written time-specific and site-specific permit from the local county agricultural commissioner 
(CAC). The CAC has the authority to deny a permit or require the use of feasible alternatives if 
the proposed application is considered to result in unacceptable impact to human health and the 
environment. California Restricted Materials include: 
 

• Any pesticide labeled as a “restricted use pesticide” pursuant to section 3 of the Federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) (7 USC § 136a). 

• Any pesticide used under an “emergency exemption” issued pursuant to section 18 of 
FIFRA (7 USC § 136p). 

• Pesticides formulated as a dust, labeled to permit outdoor use and packaged in containers 
of more than 25 pounds [3 CCR § 6400(c) notes exceptions].  

• Pesticide products containing active ingredients listed in 3 CCR § 6800(a) (potential to 
pollute ground water), when labeled for agricultural, outdoor institutional or outdoor 
industrial uses; or  

• Pesticides listed in 3 CCR § 6400(e). 
 
Decision Document: The baseline site assessment document established for each District IPM 
management site that defines the site boundaries, its characteristics, target pests, tolerance 
thresholds, site constraints and considerations, IPM management strategies and more. These 
documents are developed and maintained by the individual work units implementing the IPM 
work at that site. Findings from field monitoring are used to update the documents as needed.  
Currently, there are almost 400 decision documents that have been prepared for various District 
sites. 
 

Herbicides: Substances or mixtures of substances intended to prevent or inhibit the growth of, 
kill or destroy plants and plant parts that are determined to be pests by the property 
manager/owner.  Herbicides include, but are not limited to: 

• Contact herbicides that enter and act on a plant’s surface. 
• Systemic herbicides that enter a plant, move and act within it. 
• Pre-emergent herbicides that prevent or inhibit the germination or growth of seedlings. 
• Post-emergent herbicides that act on a plant after it has germinated or grown. 
• Root control herbicides that target roots in certain sites such as sewer lines and drainage 

tiles. 
• Aquatic herbicides that act on aquatic weeds; and 
• Algaecides, except slimicides, intended to prevent or inhibit the multiplication of or 

destroy algae in ponds, swimming pools, aquaria or similar confined sites. 
 

Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is a pest management strategy that focuses on long-term 
prevention of pests or their damage through a combination of techniques. Pesticides are used 
only after monitoring indicates they are needed according to established guidelines, and 



 Page 4 
 

treatments are made with the goal of removing only the target organism. Pest control approaches 
are selected and used in a manner that minimizes risks to human health, the environment and 
beneficial and non-target organisms.  IPM activities for a site may include a combination of one 
or more of the following control techniques: 

• No controls; 
• Physical/mechanical controls (e.g., hand labor, soil tilling, mowing, mulching, prescribed 

burns); 
• Biological controls (e.g., animal grazing, use of predators or parasites); 
• Cultural controls (e.g., selection of pest-resistant species, changed irrigation practices, 

sanitation); and 
• Chemical controls (i.e., use of pesticides, preferably low risk materials). 

 
A flow chart showing the IPM process is presented in Figure 1. 
 
IPM Field Activity Worksheet: The form that District staff completes each time they implement 
IPM at a District site to capture their monitoring findings and document actions taken and 
activities implemented which may include pesticide application. These forms help track activity 
trends over time. 
 
IPM Management Site: A geographic area and/or facility, as defined by District work units, with 
a site specific IPM management strategy. 
 
Grazing: The use of animals such as cows, horses, sheep and goats to feed on the aboveground 
portions of undesired plants. 
 
Mowing: Cutting weeds with motorized equipment or hand tools such as flail mowers, rotary 
mowers, weed whackers and brush cutters. 
 
NPDES Aquatic Pesticide Permit: The Clean Water Act prohibits discharge of "pollutants" 
through a "point source" into a "Water of the United States" without a National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. NPDES permits contain limits on allowable 
discharges, monitoring and reporting requirements and other provisions to ensure that the 
discharge does not impair water quality or human health. The District has coverage under the 
California Statewide NPDES permit for specific pesticide applications in and/or near aquatic 
environments that went into effect in December 2013 (General NPDES Permit CAG990005; 
Order 2013-0002-DWQ). The application process for coverage included submittal of a Notice of 
Intent (NOI) and an Aquatic Pesticide Application Plan (APAP) to the state. This plan, which is 
reviewed and approved by the State Water Resources Control Board, specifies the exact aquatic 
body locations covered by the permit and the exact pesticides that may be used at the specified 
location(s). If any changes to locations and/or products are identified, a request for a change to 
the APAP must be submitted to the state for consideration. Until a formal approval is granted by 
the state, the permittee cannot deviate from the submitted APAP. Application materials including 
the APAP are available for public review on the state’s website. 
 
Pest Control Adviser (PCA): In California, any person who offers a written recommendation on 
any agricultural use of a pest control product or technique, presents himself/herself as an 



 Page 5 
 

authority on any agricultural use, or solicits services or sales for any agricultural pest control tool 
is a pest control adviser (PCA). PCAs specialize in pest management and recommend use of 
pesticides and other alternatives. According to California law, all PCAs must be licensed by the 
DPR. To become a PCA in California, you must: (1) meet specific educational requirements as 
described in 3 CCR § 6550; (2) pass the laws, regulations and basic principles exam; and (3) pass 
an exam in the pest control disciplines in which you wish to make recommendations. Per the 
Food and Agricultural Code (FAC) and the California Code of Regulations (CCR), PCA 
recommendations must: not be in conflict with the registered labeling for the product being 
recommended (FAC § 12971), include a warning of the possibility of damages by the pesticide 
application that reasonably should have been known by the PCA to exist (when applicable; FAC 
§ 12003) and include a certification that alternatives and mitigation measures would substantially 
lessen any significant adverse impact on the environment have been considered and, if feasible, 
adopted (3 CCR § 6556). For information on additional on the required content of PCA written 
recommendations, refer to FAC § 12003 and 3 CCR § 6556. 

Pesticides: Any substances or mixtures of substances that are intended to prevent, destroy, repel, 
or mitigate any pest, or intended for use as a plant regulator, defoliant, or desiccant. Pesticides 
may be used in combination with surfactants and/or adjuvants to promote efficacy. Pesticides 
may be classified as either general use or restricted use based on the potential for the product to 
cause unreasonable adverse effects on human health or the environment when used according to 
label directions and without additional regulatory restrictions. Pesticides are categorized based 
on the type of pest that they are intended to control. Pesticide categories include, but are not 
limited to:  

• Herbicides – pesticides used to control plant pests or their damage 
• Rodenticides – pesticides used to control rodent pests or their damage 
• Insecticides – pesticides used to control insect pests or their damage 
• Fungicides – pesticides used to control fungal pathogens or their damage. 

 
Pesticide Use Report (PUR): A report summarizing all agricultural pesticide use, see definition 
above, that must be submitted monthly to CACs, who in turn, report the data to DPR. District 
staff submit monthly PURs to counties as required. Note: regulations require that Restricted 
Pesticide Use Reports be submitted to the CAC within seven days after each use of a restricted 
material. 
 
Pests: Organisms that interfere with the availability, quality or value of a management resource. 
Pests may damage structures, impact human health, transmit disease or simply be a nuisance. A 
pest can be a plant (weed), vertebrate (bird, rodent, or other mammal), invertebrate (insect, tick, 
mite, or snail), nematode, pathogen (bacteria, virus, or fungus) that causes disease or other 
unwanted organisms that may harm water quality, animal life or other parts of the ecosystem. 
 
Prescribed Burning: The practice of applying controlled fire to a predetermined area. Prescribed 
burns can help reduce populations of invasive weeds and serve to remove dead biomass that 
contribute to wildfire fuel loads as well as support restoration of natural ecosystems. 
  
Product Evaluation Process (PEP): The District-established process to evaluate new pesticide 
products for use as part of the District’s IPM program. 



 Page 6 
 

 
Qualified Applicator Certificate (QAC): A certificate administered by DPR to individuals who 
use or supervise the use of federally-restricted use pesticides or California-restricted materials for 
any purpose or on any property other than that provided by the definition of a "private 
applicator" per 3 CCR § 6000. This certificate is also required by anyone who is in the business 
of maintenance gardening and performs pest control that is incidental to such business. 
 
Qualified Applicator License (QAL): A license administered by DPR to individuals who: (a) 
supervise the application of either a restricted use or a general use pesticide made by a licensed 
pest control business and are responsible for the safe and legal operation of the pest control 
business; or (b) use or supervise the use of federally restricted use pesticide or California 
restricted material for any purpose or on any property other than that provided by the definition 
of a "private applicator" per 3 CCR § 6000. 
 

Restricted Use Pesticides: Pesticide products that have been determined by the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) as having the potential to cause unreasonable 
adverse effects to the environment and injury to applicators or bystanders without added 
restrictions. Restricted Use Pesticides are not available for purchase or use by the general public 
and may only be used by a qualified applicator or someone under a qualified applicator’s direct 
supervision. Federally Restricted Use Pesticides by law must contain a restricted use statement 
enclosed in a box at the top front panel of the pesticide label.  

Safety Data Sheets: A Safety Data Sheet (SDS) is a document prepared by the manufacturer of a 
chemical in accordance with OSHA regulations on hazard communication and contains critical 
information necessary during times of emergency, including chemical composition, safe 
handling practices and emergency control measures such as fire-fighting. The District requires 
each work unit to have SDS of every pesticide applied on District property. 

Signal Words: Signal words are found on pesticide product labels and are used to describe the 
acute (short-term) toxicity of the formulated pesticide product. Signal words can be generally 
defined as follows: 

• “Caution”:  Least Acutely Hazardous to Human Health 
• “Warning”:  Moderate Acute Hazard to Human Health 
• “Danger” or “Danger-Poison”:  Highly Acutely Hazardous to Human Health 

 
Structural Pest Control:  The control of household pests (including but not limited to rodents, 
vermin and insects) and wood-destroying pests and organisms or such other pests which may 
invade households or structures. 
 

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

District Work Units: All District work units that practice pest management on District property 
(including watershed lands, recreation areas, aqueducts and other rights-of-way, facility grounds, 
etc.) are responsible for implementing Best Management Practices (BMPs) that have been 



 Page 7 
 

developed by the IPM administrators in consultation with IPM implementing staff and 
management.  These work units include: 

• Pardee Operations and Maintenance 
• Natural Resources (Mokelumne and East Bay) 
• Aqueduct Operations and Maintenance (Stockton; Bixler; Walnut Creek) 
• Facilities and Grounds Maintenance (Water Side) 
• Facilities and Grounds Maintenance (Wastewater) 

Each work unit is responsible for: 

• Developing pest control strategies based on IPM principles and in consultation with a 
PCA and other subject matter experts such as the local county department of agriculture 
and the University of California Cooperative Extension (UCCE). 

• Documenting pest control activities including baseline decision documents; field 
inspection sheets; spray logs as required; local training events. 

• Complying with regulatory requirements and maintaining records as described in this 
section. 

• Inputting verified data into District’s electronic IPM database to assist generation of an 
annual summary report of pesticides used and amounts. 

• Participating in required training, including use of appropriate PPE. 
• Managing contractors performing IPM activities to ensure compliance with IPM best 

management practices; ensure contractors provide data to complete IPM Field 
Worksheets; staff then enters in to the IPM database (note contractor is responsible for 
PUR submittal to regulatory agency). 

• Additional work unit responsibilities include meeting applicable license and training 
requirements for appropriate staff and maintaining effective working relationships with 
local regulators. 

Environmental Compliance Section (ECS) Staff: ECS staff responsibilities include:  

• Function as the IPM program administrator. 
• Provide guidance and consistency on District-wide pest management practices in 

accordance with District Policy 7.05. 
• Reviewing IPM practices on an annual basis to ensure consistency among District work 

groups. 
• Reviewing pesticide usage requests and plans for the use of new pesticides or for 

pesticide applications within environmentally sensitive areas, as needed. 
• Maintaining files concerning pesticide usage request reports. 
• Maintaining information concerning various pesticides used throughout the District. 
• Coordinate communication and information sharing among District workgroups. 
• Develop Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the District’s IPM program. 
• Respond to questions from the public and the District’s Board of Directors about the 

District’s IPM program. 
• Coordinate IPM annual training for District staff. 
• Convene meetings with senior management staff that oversee IPM to resolve any 

outstanding issues; interpret policy and/or update guidelines.   
 



 Page 8 
 

District Contractors and Tenants: 

• District contractors and tenants operating on District property are expected to adhere to 
District IPM principles. This expectation is captured as a requirement in various land use 
permits and agreements issued by the District. 

 

SUMMARY OF POTENTIALLY RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Federal Laws and Regulations 

Title 7, United States Code, Section 136 –136y, and 40 Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 152 – 
186 established the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), which 
provides the federal regulatory framework governing pesticides and herbicides.  FIFRA requires 
that all pesticides must be registered, and that no one can use a pesticide unless it has been 
registered.  FIFRA further specifies whether a pesticide is classified as a restricted use or general 
use pesticide. 

Additional relevant federal laws and regulations include: 

• Federal Endangered Species Act, which provides a framework for the conservation of 
federally threatened and endangered plants and animals and the habitats in which they are 
found.  

o Several Stipulated Injunctions ordered by federal courts to resolve ESA litigation 
regarding pesticide use are currently in effect in areas of District operations. The 
Stipulated Injunctions address pesticide use practices such as buffer zones around 
habitat areas for pacific salmonids, 11 species in San Francisco Bay area, and the 
California red-legged frog. 

o The District has entered into a Safe Harbor Agreement with the United States Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS) for the Mokelumne Watershed, under which the 
District commits to maintaining a baseline of habitat and enhancing existing 
habitat that supports federally endangered species. This agreement contains 
specific provisions of pesticide use (e.g., no aerial spraying above waterways, 
etc.). The Safe Harbor Agreement has an associated incidental take permit and 
requires the District to undertake certain conservation management activities to 
restore and maintain habitat for listed species.  

o The District has entered into a Low Effect Habitat Conservation Plan to minimize 
the impacts of District activities on the District’s East Bay watershed lands. This 
agreement has an associated incidental take permit and contains avoidance 
measures and BMP’s to avoid or minimize sensitive species impacts. 

• Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act, which makes it unlawful to pursue, hunt, take, 
capture, kill or sell migratory birds or their nests or eggs without prior authorization from 
USFWS. 



 Page 9 
 

• Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, which prohibits anyone, without a permit, from 
"taking" bald or golden eagles, including their parts, nests or eggs. 

• Clean Air Act, which classifies certain pesticides as Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs). 

• Clean Water Act (including NPDES permitting) for spills to a receiving water, sanitary 
sewer or storm sewer and for aquatic pest control. 

• Safe Drinking Water Act, which establishes Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) for 
certain chemicals that are components of pesticides.  

 

State Laws and Regulations 

California’s Pesticides and Pest Control Operations regulatory program is described in Title 3, 
California Code of Regulations, Division 6, which establishes the Department of Pesticide 
Regulations (DPR) as the agency responsible for oversight of state regulation of pesticides.  The 
California program parallels FIFRA.  The DPR enforces federal and state-defined pesticide laws 
and regulations and certifies qualified pesticide applicators and PCAs. 

Additional relevant state laws and regulations include: 

• California Environmental Quality Act, which requires public agencies in California to the 
consider the potential environmental effects of discretionary projects they propose to 
carry out or approve, mitigate significant environmental impacts of such projects when 
feasible and provide the public an opportunity to comment on potential environmental 
effects of such projects prior to project approval.  

• California Endangered Species Act, which conserves and protects plant and animal 
species at risk of extinction. 

o The District has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife to allow named District personnel to 
monitor and handle CTS. 
 

• California Fish and Game Code Section 1602 requires entry into a Lake and Streambed 
Alteration (LSA) agreement before taking any of the following actions, if that action is 
found by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife to substantially adversely affect 
fish and wildlife resources:  

o substantially diverting or obstructing the natural flow of any river, stream, or lake.  
o substantially changing or using any material from the bed, channel, or bank of, 

any river, stream, or lake; or  
o depositing or disposing of debris, waste, or other material containing crumbled, 

flaked, or ground pavement where it may pass into any river, stream, or lake. 
 

• Routine Maintenance Agreement (RMA), an LSA that covers routine maintenance 
projects an entity will complete at different time periods during the term of the 
Agreement. RMAs have a five-year term and are renewed/reissued as necessary. The 



 Page 10 
 

District conducts routine maintenance activities under various RMAs it has entered into 
with California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

• California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, which establishes a 
comprehensive program to protect water quality and the beneficial uses of water and 
includes the Stream and Wetlands System Protection Policy. 

• Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act (also known as Proposition 65), which 
protects the state's drinking water sources from being contaminated with chemicals 
known to cause cancer, birth defects or other reproductive harm, and requires businesses 
to inform Californians about exposures to such chemicals.  

• Hazardous Materials Business Plan Program/State and Federal Community Right to 
Know Laws, which establish reporting requirements to inform the public on chemicals 
and hazardous substances in their communities. Particularly the California Hazardous 
Materials Business Plan program requires preparation of a Hazardous Materials Business 
Plans by businesses that handle more than a threshold quantity of hazardous materials, 
and additional requirements regarding  

• Hazardous Waste Control Laws, under which pesticide wastes (with the exception of 
empty containers) are considered to be hazardous wastes in the state of California, and 
subject to regulation by the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 

 

Local Agencies 

County agricultural commissioners (CACs) are employees of the California Department of Food 
and Agriculture and have responsibility for pesticide regulation under the direction of the DPR.  
The CACs have the authority to adopt county-specific regulations governing pest control 
operations upon approval of the DPR. 
 
District Plans 
 
The District has separate master plans for watershed lands in the East Bay and Upcountry that 
outline an array of activities that include but are not limited to habitat conservation, grazing and 
fire protection, trail use and more. The plans will influence which IPM methods are appropriate 
in select areas. 
 

THE IPM PROCESS 

Executing a successful IPM program requires that the following steps are taken. An IPM Flow 
Chart is presented in Figure 1 to show the interrelationship of these steps. All District work units 
follow the IPM process illustrated in Figure 1. 

STEP 1: Identify Potential Pests within a Defined Management Area: All personnel having pest 
management responsibilities shall be trained to accurately identify major pests and the damage 
such pests may cause. Field manuals and other resources shall be made available to staff to assist 
in pest identification, as necessary. Consultation with a PCA, and other subject matter experts 



 Page 11 
 

such as the local county department of agriculture and UCCE may also be needed. This 
information is included in the Decision Document established for each pre-defined IPM 
management area. The Decision Document is established and maintained by the District work 
unit that manages the specified area. 

STEP 2: Establish Action Thresholds for Individual Pest Species: An action threshold is the set 
of conditions required to trigger a control action (e.g., the presence of large, rooted vegetation in 
an earthen dam). This information is included in the Decision Document established for each 
pre-defined IPM management area. 

District staff shall determine the pest presence that is considered unacceptable based on factors 
such as anticipated employee and public health and safety, operational impacts, regulatory 
requirements (i.e., fire codes) and damage to property and infrastructure. In some cases, 
thresholds may be established based on the time of the year, pest life stage and other relevant 
factors. At the same time, a monitoring plan must be devised for detecting pests and determining 
when to implement control actions. Action thresholds may be reached when: 

• Monitoring results indicate the level of pest presence will cause damage or threat, if left 
untreated; 

• Biological or environmental factors cannot be expected to reduce the level of pest 
presence to a reasonable degree within a reasonable amount of time; and 

• Pest management costs (including any environmental or health impacts) are considered to 
be lower than costs associated with potential pest damage. 

STEP 3: Establish Monitoring Guidelines: Pest monitoring programs have three primary 
objectives: 

• To identify and track existing and/or emerging pest populations; 
• To determine when action thresholds may be or have been exceeded; and 
• To determine the effectiveness of treatment actions and inform future pest management 

decisions. 

Monitoring methods may vary from site to site, and from pest to pest, but all monitoring methods 
must involve regular inspections for pests and/or damage symptoms. District staff of the work 
units performing IPM activities will utilize the IPM Field Activity Worksheet to document the 
findings of each monitoring event so that management strategies can be reliably evaluated. The 
Worksheet requires the following information be completed:  

• Staff information and date. 
• Site location information/field condition. 
• Target pest information. 
• IPM objectives for the inspection. 
• IPM method(s) implemented.  
• Pesticide information (if applicable) including product name, EPA ID #, quantity used, 

application method/rates. 

Hard copy worksheets may be used in the field however the data must be subsequently entered 
electronically into the District IPM database. Supervisors shall review information for accuracy 
before uploading into the database. The data will be analyzed over time to evaluate the efficacy 



 Page 12 
 

of IPM methods used and if changes are warranted. If changes are determined to be necessary, 
the Decision Document will be updated to reflect updated management strategies. 

STEP 4: Develop a List of Acceptable Management Strategies for Individual Sites, Types of 
Sites and Pests: Each work unit shall develop a list of acceptable management strategies for the 
areas under which it has authority and responsibility.  This information is included in the 
Decision Document established for each pre-defined IPM management area.  

The criteria listed below are used in developing and selecting management strategies. Since these 
criteria may not be met in every case, or met to varying degrees, judgment must be exercised to 
maximize the benefits associated with each strategy.  

• No unacceptable risk to humans and the environment. 
• Protective of water quality. 
• Complies with all site-specific regulations. 
• Most likely to result in long-term control of the pest. 
• Applicator safety. 
• Ease of use. 
• Cost-effectiveness. 

As strategies are developed, they may include a combination of various management methods.  
The preferred methods in an IPM program are those that permanently prevent or significantly 
reduce pest pressure, thereby eliminating or greatly reducing the potential for pest damage.  Pest 
management strategies may include one or more of the following elements and may evolve over 
time as site conditions evolve: 

• No controls; 
• Physical/mechanical controls (e.g., hand labor, soil tilling, mowing, mulching, prescribed 

burns); 
• Biological controls (e.g., animal grazing, use of predators or parasites). 
• Cultural controls (e.g., selection of pest-resistant species, changed irrigation practices, 

sanitation); and 
• Chemical controls (i.e., use of pesticides that includes the selection and application of the 

lowest risk materials that will effectively control the target pest).  
 

STEP 5: Utilize the Established IPM Recordkeeping System: Accurate recordkeeping is essential 
for regulatory compliance, evaluating and improving the District’s IPM program and for 
reference purposes if District management, the Board of Directors or the public requests 
information on measures taken by the District to perform pest management. Each work unit is 
responsible for maintaining written or electronic records including Decision Documents, Field 
Inspection Worksheets, Spray Reports, PURs, and training attendance. These documents should 
be reviewed regularly and updated as needed with information including, but not limited to: 

• A list of pests identified in a given management area; 
• A description of exceeded action thresholds for a given management area; 
• A list of management strategies, including all associated restrictions, for a given 

management area; 



 Page 13 
 

• Records of observations of the management area based on the monitoring guidelines 
established; observations may include: 

 
o The degree of pest infestation using density, distribution, or other appropriate 

parameters (a map of the management area is useful); 
o Information concerning the treatment method used for the pest problem, including 

a description of the treatment method, area treated, time(s) and date(s) of 
treatment, location of treatment, personnel performing treatment; etc.; 

o An assessment of the effectiveness of the treatment method in minimizing or 
eradicating the pest problem, in both the short and long term; 

o A description of side-effects, if any, of the treatment on non-target organisms. 
 

• A summary of any citizen inquiries, complaints and/or positive comments received, and a 
description of any other issues that arise during the course of IPM implementation. 



 Page 14 
 

FIGURE 1. IPM Flow Chart 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PESTICIDE USE PRACTICES 

Pesticide Use Practices 

In some cases, District work units implementing IPM include pesticide application as an element 
of their management strategies. Herbicides are the predominant type of pesticide used on District 
sites. The District only uses pesticides that have been reviewed and are registered for use by 
DPR. All pesticides used at District sites by District staff must have an active EPA Registration 
number or that meet the criteria for minimum risk exemption as described in FIFRA Section 
25(b) (40 CFR § 152.25) and California law (3 CCR § 6147). This current pesticide list is 
located in Appendix A. It is important to note this list evolves overtime. Further, this is a list of 
pesticides that are currently available for use and does not represent actual use. The District’s 
pesticide use practices are summarized as follows: 

Do you 
recognize the 

pest? 

YES 

NO 

NO YES 

YES 

YES 

NO Do you know the site-
specific regulations? 

Action threshold 
exceeded? 

IDENTIFY current pests, potential 
pests, problem areas 

MONITOR for pest presence  
 

SET control action guidelines  

DETERMINE management technique 
and IMPLEMENT treatment 

Consult PCA, District 
Biologist, UCCE or 

other knowledgeable 
resource  

Treatment 
effective? 

NO 

RECORDKEEPING  

STEP 1: 

STEP 2: 

STEP 3: 

STEP 4: 

STEP 5: 



 Page 15 
 

• Read and follow all product label instructions.  

• Comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, including training 
requirements and stipulated injunctions for the protection of threatened and endangered 
species. 

• Obtain appropriate PCA written recommendations prior to application. 

• If pesticides are used, use the lowest risk pesticide that will adequately achieve IPM 
goals. Take into consideration overall risk to the applicator, the public and the 
environment. 

• Pesticide applicators are required to utilize Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) in 
accordance with product label instructions and California requirements. All required PPE 
is provided by the District for staff use. At a minimum PPE for pesticide application will 
include closed-toe shoes and socks, chemical resistant gloves and protective eye wear. If 
additional PPE is required by the pesticide product label it will be provided by the 
District and must be worn by the applicator.  

• Staff applying pesticides will be trained on the relevant chemical safety Required Safety 
Practices (RSPs) developed by the District’s Worker Health and Safety team. 

• Adequate notification signs must be posted to inform individuals of the activity if there 
could be contact by members of the public or District workers within an area to be treated 
with a pesticide.  Adequate notification entails posting notification signs in the area of 
application on the day of the application event, which include a brief description of the 
activity, date, products being used and when it will be safe to re-enter the area after the 
application is complete.  Notification requirements described on product labels should be 
referred to and always complied with as a minimum, but adequate notification is required 
even where products labels fail to clearly prescribe posting requirements if there could be 
contact by members of the public or District workers within the treated area. 

• In accordance with the product label instructions, apply pesticides at the specified 
appropriate time and under adequate weather conditions to maximize their effectiveness 
on the target organism and minimize the likelihood of offsite movement. Examples of 
conditions to consider include but are not limited to:  

o Make spray applications when wind speeds are low (e.g., between 2<10 mph 
unless otherwise specified by the label instructions);  

o Applications will only be made when rain is not occurring or expected to occur 
within 24 hours of the application (unless otherwise specified by the label 
instructions); etc.  

• Do not mix pesticides adjacent to a storm drain inlet, culvert, watercourse, or filter bed. 
Mix in an area where spillage, if it occurs, can be easily contained and cleaned up. 



 Page 16 
 

• Select pesticides and application techniques along roadsides that will retain some 
vegetative cover, where possible. This will help prevent soil erosion, slow the rate of 
storm water runoff and minimize potential for contaminated runoff. 

• Calibrate field equipment regularly to ensure the desired application rate. 

• Mix only as much material as necessary for the application. 

• Maintain a record of pesticide usage for each site. This record shall include the type and 
quantity of pesticide used. Each work unit is responsible for maintaining daily spray logs 
where applicable. Each work unit is responsible for collecting, reviewing and reporting 
PUR data to their respective CACs. Note that regulations require that Restricted Pesticide 
PURs be submitted to the CAC within seven days after each use of a restricted material. 

• All pesticides applied in or near surface water must be registered for use in aquatic sites. 
Aquatic pesticides applied to waters of the United States must be identified in the 
District’s Notice of Intent (NOI) to comply with the NPDES Aquatic Pesticide Permit. 

 

Product Evaluation Process (PEP) for New Pesticide Products 

The District strives to limit its pesticide use to the maximum extent practicable. The District’s 
pesticide products list is intentionally limited. The pesticide list is regularly reviewed and if a 
pesticide is determined to be unsuitable based on current information, then that pesticide will be 
removed from the list.  

District staff may only use pesticide products approved for use at District sites by the IPM 
Review Panel. The IPM Review Panel is comprised of supervisors representing each work group 
implementing IPM, the IPM administrators and an independent PCA. The group meets as needed 
when a request to approve a new product is submitted. Several steps, described below, must be 
followed in order to test (pilot) a new pesticide product and obtain approval for regular use under 
the IPM Program.  

In the event that a District Department Director or the IPM Review Panel determines that a new 
product must be used on a limited basis to address a public health or other emergency1, certain 
elements of the PEP may be expedited or waived on a case-by-case basis at the discretion of the 
IPM Review Panel. In these situations, the District Department Director or the IPM Review 
Panel will make findings 1) that an emergency as defined by the IPM Guidelines is underway 
and that basis for that determination, 2) approved pest management tools are insufficient to 
address the emergency and the basis for that determination, and 3) the product is proposed to be 
used as intended, according to the product label, and is recommended for use by a PCA. 
 

 
1 For the purposes of these Guidelines, an emergency is a sudden, unexpected occurrence, 
involving or creating a clear and imminent danger, and that demands immediate action to prevent 
or mitigate the loss of or damage to life, health, property, or essential public services. (See. e.g., 
Water Code § 12899.5(e); Public Contract Code § 1102; Health and Safety Code § 
42504(d)(1)(D); Public Resources Code § 21060.3; Government Code § 4216(f)(1).) 



 Page 17 
 

 
 
 
STEP 1: If District staff would like to test a new product, they must first obtain verbal or written 
supervisor approval to initiate the request process. If approved, staff must consult with a PCA 
and other subject matter experts such as the local CAC or UCCE adviser and complete a 
comprehensive new product request form that includes, at minimum, the following information: 
 

• Name of person making the request. 
• Product name and EPA Registration Number (if available). 
• Active and inert ingredients. 
• Target pest(s). 
• Justification for making the request. Examples of justification include: 

o Need or desire to replace or reduce use of a previously approved product (e.g., 
increased efficacy, resistance management, reduced risk to human health or 
environment, increased selectivity, similar product at a lower cost, previous 
product no longer available), 

o Need to control a new pest, 
o Need to control a pest in a new setting. 

• Available information regarding efficacy, human and environmental safety, selectivity, 
and estimated cost per gallon or acre. 

• If the product is intended to replace or reduce use of a previously approved product: 
available information regarding efficacy, human and environmental safety, selectivity, 
and estimated cost per gallon or acre of the previously approved product. 

• Intended use site(s) should the product be approved. 
• Suggested pilot testing location(s). 
• New equipment or modifications to existing equipment required, if any. 
• Relevant information or guidance provided as a result of consultation with the PCA 

and/or subject matter expert(s). 
• Attached: product label, SDS, PCA written recommendation, product efficacy data (e.g., 

UCCE or other trial data, if available). 
 
Supervisors then submit the completed form and all relevant technical information to the IPM 
Review Panel for consideration.  
 
STEP 2: The IPM Review Panel meets to discuss the request. The panel will review the product 
label and SDS, conduct a thorough evaluation of all information provided as part of the new 
product request described in STEP 1, complete the new product request evaluation form, and 
either approve, conditionally approve, request more information, or deny the request for a pilot 
based on their comprehensive assessment. The evaluation form prompts consideration of 
information such as: 
 

• Product registration status or eligibility for minimum risk exemption from registration per 
FIFRA Section 25(b) (40 CFR § 152.25) and California law (3 CCR § 6147). 

• Relevancy of labeled use sites and target pests to anticipated EBMUD activities 



 Page 18 
 

• Whether the need for or anticipated benefit of the product is sufficient to warrant 
consideration of approval. 

• Overall feasibility of implementation. 
• Potential risks to human health and/or the environment (e.g., worker safety, public safety, 

impacts to water quality, impacts to special status species and other non-target 
organisms). 

• Required safety precautions (e.g., personal protective equipment (PPE) requirements, 
restricted-entry interval (REI), grazing restrictions). 

• Feedback from PCAs and other subject matter experts. 
• Ability to implement label requirements to reduce potential risks to human health and/or 

the environment. 
• Applicable use limitations. 
• Compliance with applicable District permits/agreements. 

 
Using the information on the evaluation forms, new products will not be approved for a pilot if 
the IPM Review Panel concludes any of the following with reasonable certainty based on that 
body of information: 
 

• The product is not anticipated (1) to have benefits unique from previously approved 
products or IPM methods, or (2) to provide similar benefits while presenting less 
environmental, human health, and safety risk. 

• The product as intended to be used by the requestor poses significant unacceptable risks 
to human health, including worker and public safety. 

• The product as intended to be used poses significant risks to the environment.  
• When used as intended, either risks to human health or to the environment clearly 

outweigh anticipated product benefits. 
• The PPE required to safely use the product is impracticable for District staff. 
• The product cannot be used as intended in compliance with applicable District permits 

and agreements.  
 
The IPM Review Panel may also choose to reject a pilot request based on a comprehensive 
assessment of these factors combined with PCA recommendations.  
 
STEP 3: If the request is approved for a pilot, the requestor is directed to submit a pilot test plan 
and then proceed with the work upon notification from the IPM Review Panel. The plan will 
include objectives, details of products to be tested, application rates and methodology, test 
location(s), duration of testing, cost, criteria and methods used to evaluate efficacy, and a 
schedule to report back on test findings once complete. If the request is denied, the pilot will not 
proceed. If additional information is needed, the requestor may be asked to resubmit the request 
form.  
 
STEP 4: The pilot is conducted. Data is collected and summarized with applicator 
recommendations, including notes on challenges, non-target impacts observed, and overall 
findings regarding product efficacy. Once complete, the data is submitted for the IPM Review 
Panel for final review.  
 



 Page 19 
 

STEP 5: The IPM Review Panel issues a final decision for regular product use. If based on the 
information gathered in the pilot process the IPM Review Panel concludes that the product is not 
sufficiently efficacious against the pest or that the drawbacks associated with use of the product 
outweigh the benefits and cannot be mitigated, staff will be notified that the new product request 
is denied.  
 
If based on the information gathered in the pilot process the IPM Review Panel concludes that 
any of the denial standards in Step 2 apply, the new product request will be denied, staff will be 
notified, and the basis of the decision will be filed for future reference. Approval will require 
evidence-based findings that are based on the same standards listed in Step 2:  
 

- The product is anticipated to have benefits unique from already-approved IPM products 
or methods, and those benefits outweigh potential risks to human health and the 
environment. 

- The product as approved for use does not pose significant risks to human health, 
including worker and public safety. 

- The product as approved for use does not pose significant risks to the environment.  
- The PPE required to safely use the product is practicable for District staff. 
- The product can be used as approved in compliance with applicable District permits and 

agreements.  
- Any concerns raised by the PCA’s analysis, which may be distinct from environmental or 

health risks, have been considered by the Review Panel and the Review Panel finds that 
the pilot has either addressed those concerns or that the benefits of the product outweigh 
those concerns. 

 
If results from the pilot study support approval of the new product request, the product will be 
added to the District’s list of approved pesticides and all work units implementing IPM will be 
made aware of the approval. Once approved by the IPM Review Panel, staff are responsible for 
the product’s safe and effective use in compliance with the product label, applicable laws and 
regulations, and District permits, agreements, and use conditions. All finalized evaluation forms, 
whether resulting in a new product approval or denial, are filed for future reference as needed. 
 



 Page 20 
 

 
Appendix A includes the list of pesticides that may be used by District staff on District property, 
rights-of-way, utility alignments or other areas where necessary and appropriate. This list is 
subject to change as new products are evaluated and approved for use and old ones that are no 
longer used are removed from the list. Note that not all listed products are used at all locations. 

Pesticide Storage 

Pesticides shall be stored in locked buildings. All pesticide containers and pesticide storage areas 
shall be properly labeled. Pesticide labels shall be reviewed for specific pesticide storage 
instructions. Pesticides stored in containers other than the original containers shall be labeled 
with, at minimum: the name of the pesticide, signal word, product owner’s company name, 
section (e.g., EBMUD, Aqueduct Section) and address. 

Pesticide Disposal 

If the product label does not have specific instructions to follow when rinsing pesticide 
containers, triple rinse empty pesticide containers immediately upon emptying contents. Place 
rinse water in spray tank incorporating it into the pesticide mixture. Apply the tank mixture to 
target pests in the application area. 

Handle and dispose of triple-rinsed empty pesticide containers according to local CAC and 
manufacturer’s requirements, recycling plastic containers when possible. Whenever possible, 



 Page 21 
 

unwanted or unused pesticides should be returned to the supplier. Procedures for unwanted 
pesticides are as follows: 

• Contact other District work units or one or more of the District warehouses to determine 
if they can use the pesticide in their operations; 

• Return unopened containers to the supplier; or 

If reusing or returning unwanted pesticides is not feasible, contact the IPM program 
administrators and/or the District’s Regulatory Compliance Office to arrange for disposal.  

Equipment Cleaning to Remove Pests and Pesticides  

Equipment should be cleaned to avoid unintentional transfer of pests from one location to 
another. Equipment that may come in contact with pesticide products should be adequately 
cleaned after use and may be signed to indicate its use. In the case where equipment needs to be 
brought to staff for maintenance, such as vehicles, the vehicle user should properly rinse and 
clean the vehicle and associated equipment to minimize the potential for maintenance staff to 
come into contact with pesticide residue. 
 

Pesticide Spill Response 

Properly sized spill kits shall be prepared and maintained at pesticide storage areas and on all 
application equipment. 

Spill kits shall include the following: an instruction sheet with a contact notification list and 
phone numbers, absorbent material capable of absorbing up to five gallons of liquid, shovel, 
broom, dustpan, chemically resistant gloves and warning tape to secure the area in case clean-up 
cannot be accomplished immediately. If required by the product label the worker should also 
employ the appropriate footwear and apron and/or respirator.  Appendix B summarizes the 
District’s emergency notification procedure for pesticide spills.  

Employees that apply pesticides will be trained in the use of the spill kits and respirators as 
required. All employees that apply pesticides shall be familiar with the procedure. When 
respirators are required by the product label, employees must receive required medical 
evaluations and respirator fit testing, as well as training on how to properly select, use, and 
maintain respirators. For additional information, refer to the District’s written Respiratory 
Protection Program.  

ANNUAL IPM ACTIVITY REPORTS 

Each District work group accounts for the IPM methods used, including total pesticide usage.  
Data is quality assured and entered into the IPM database on a regular basis to facilitate 
production of an annual report used to provide updates to the District’s Board of Directors on 
IPM program status. No later than January 31st of each year, Supervisors of all IPM 
implementing workgroups will make sure that all data from the year prior has been entered and 
checked for accuracy. 

 
 



 Page 22 
 

CERTIFICATION AND TRAINING 
Certification: There are several different job classifications across multiple Departments at the 
District that support implementation of the IPM Program.  Pesticide application, one of many 
IPM methods, is employed based on comprehensive analysis of the target pest and application 
site, and careful consideration of alternatives. Some District workgroups require that workers 
obtain a DPR Qualified Applicator Certificate (QAC) while others do not. However, all workers 
at the District who apply pesticides are required to be adequately trained and directly supervised 
by experienced applicators that hold a valid QAC. A Qualified Applicator License (QAL) 
administered by DPR is also acceptable. 
 
State law requires that anyone handling pesticides be trained pursuant to the requirements of 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 6724, and those applying or supervising the 
application of state restricted materials hold a QAC or QAL. However, the District recognizes 
the value of staff competency in pesticide application for personal safety and environmental 
protection and will support staff to voluntarily obtain and maintain a QAC. The District will 
cover the costs for the required training and license fees for employees whose job duties 
specifically include pest control and pesticide application and/or supervision of such activities. 
The District will also support staff in obtaining the continuing education units (CEUs) required 
by the state to maintain their QAC status. Support may include registration fees for attendance at 
relevant conferences, seminars, classes, etc. and necessary fees to obtain and renew the 
employee’s QAC. 
 

Training: All staff implementing pest management at District sites will receive training in 
general IPM principles and strategies. This training is conducted annually by the IPM program 
administrators and attendance is logged in the District’s Electronic Training System (ETS) 
system.  

District staff who apply pesticides as part of their IPM implementation duties shall also be 
trained in topics including, but not limited to pesticide alternatives, the safe use of pesticides, 
potential hazards to applicators and the environment and first aid and decontamination 
procedures. This is generally referred to as pesticide handler training (3 CCR § 6724). Training 
shall be conducted annually for each pesticide or chemically similar group of pesticides to be 
used. The work unit shall maintain records of staff that received the training for at least two 
years. New employees shall not apply pesticides until they have received the appropriate training 
or until their supervisor confirms that they have skills and knowledge equivalent to the training.  

 

RECORD KEEPING 

Decision Documents will be retained on the District’s shared network for the life of the IPM 
program; old versions should be retained for reference as updates are made to newer current 
versions. 

IPM Field Inspection Worksheets should be retained for at least three years should questions 
arise about individual data points; however, the information from these worksheets should be 
entered into the database on a frequent basis as the information is collected. 



 Page 23 
 

All copies of PUR forms for District staff chemical applications should be retained at the local 
work unit level in accordance with regulatory requirements; a minimum of two years.   

All daily spray logs, where required, should be retained at the local work unit level in accordance 
with regulatory requirements; a minimum of three years.   

State law requires that a Restricted Pesticide use report be submitted to the CAC within seven 
days after each use of a restricted material.  

All annual report materials, data collection form templates and PEP related forms will be 
retained by the IPM program administrators for at least five years. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION AND OUTREACH 
 
IPM is implemented by diverse workgroups across multiple locations therefore frequent internal 
communication is necessary to ensure all employees have the latest information about latest 
topics, available tools, challenges and solutions and any changes to procedures. The District has 
an IPM workgroup that meets regularly to discuss these topics. Additionally, at least once per 
year an IPM supervisory group, comprised of supervisors, managers and superintendents that 
manage workgroups implementing IPM as part of their job duties come together to review 
accomplishments from the year prior and identify goals and tasks for the year ahead. Annually 
the IPM program administrators provide a program status report to the District’s Board of 
Directors and implement recommendations they may have.  
 
External communication is also an important element of the District’s IPM program. It is 
important that the community we serve has easy access to information about IPM practices 
including pesticide usage in and around the areas where they frequent. Signs are posted in areas 
before pesticides are used. Open house workshops have been hosted when community members 
desire information about the IPM program. The District has established a direct email address for 
the community to submit questions at IPM@ebmud.com. Field pamphlets have been developed 
with basic IPM program details and contact information for employees to handout if questions 
arise while in the field. The District’s website www.ebmud.com includes basic information about 
the IPM program and related documents, including the IPM guidelines, available for download.  
 
 
AGENCY CONTACTS  
 
Contact information for technical expertise such as CACs, who are typically co-located with 
County UCCE offices, are provided below for reference. In addition, contacts for UCCE staff are 
also provided below. In addition to technical expertise, staff at these agencies can offer 
assistance with regulatory compliance.

mailto:IPM@ebmud.com
mailto:IPM@ebmud.com
http://www.ebmud.com/


 Page 24 
 

 

IPM Agency Contacts 

Agency Type Agency Name Telephone No. 

Federal USEPA Air and Toxics Division, Pesticides (415) 947-8704 

State Cal-EPA Department of Pesticide Regulation (916) 445-3976 

Local Alameda County Agricultural Commissioner (510) 670-5232 

Local Amador County Agricultural Commissioner (209) 223-6487 

Local Calaveras County Agricultural Commissioner (209) 754-6504 ext. 3 

Local Contra Costa County Agricultural Commissioner  (925) 608-6600 

Local Sacramento County Agricultural Commissioner (916) 875-6603 

Local San Joaquin County Agricultural Commissioner (209) 953-6000 

Local Alameda County UC Cooperative Extension (510) 567-6812 

Local Amador County UC Cooperative Extension (209) 223-6482 

Local Calaveras County UC Cooperative Extension (209) 754-6477 

Local Contra Costa County UC Cooperative Extension (925) 608-6670 

Local Sacramento County UC Cooperative Extension (916) 875-6913 

Local San Joaquin County UC Cooperative Extension (209) 953-6100 

 

FEES 

Applicator certificates cost $60 and expire biannually on December 31. The District covers the 
costs of licenses for staff that implement IPM and supports ongoing training to obtain required 
CEUs to keep a certificate active. 

 
 
 
 



 
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

1 
 

CALENDAR –Action or Consent  
(Meeting Date – mm, dd, yyyy) 

 

February 23, 2022 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission    

Re: Request for Timely Fiscal Information on Measures FF and GG 

Recommendation 
The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (“Commission” or “DFSC”) respectfully requests that 
the Fire Department and City Manager provide the Commission with the following fiscal 
information regarding Measures GG and FF: 
 

1. Base budget documentation for the 22/23 FY (current year) that was approved by 
council; 

2. Quarterly, preferably monthly, expenditure reports, including a brief narrative 
describing each line item, with initial reports starting by March 30, 2022, with a 
published calendar for reporting and 

3. The proposed budgets submitted to Council’s Budget and Finance Policy Committee in 
April, each subsequent revision presented to Council, and the budget that is adopted at 
the end of the budget process. 

 
The Commission takes seriously the role it has been given by the voters and the City Council to 
provide oversight and advice to the City Council about the use of Measure GG and FF funds. 
DFSC commissioners intend to carry out this role but must rely on information from the City 
Manager and the Fire Department to do so.   

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

The commission is supposed to receive formal written reports on a regular cadence to provide 
input and oversight. The commission has received input from the Fire Department that the 
approved cadence is twice a year GG (mid-year report, and end of year report). For the 2021 
cycle, only one report was provided, as we understand it due to COVID and personnel issues. 
This could put the City out of compliance with the measure adopted and could put the City at 
risk for additional costs. The commission is asking for four financial reports instead of two. Most 
financial systems allow for project reporting so cost for these measures would be set up to 
report on any cadence, which should have occurred already. If not, it would be the set up time, 
which is effectively no additional time or effort.  



 
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Commission’s main duty is to serve as an oversight body for the expenditure of Measure GG 
and FF funds.  On September 22, 2020, the City Council passed a resolution “Designating the DFSC 
as the Citizens’ Oversight Committee for Expenditure of the Proceeds of the Fire, Emergency 
Services and Wildfire Prevention Tax (Measure FF)” which replicated the Commission’s duties with 
respect to Measure GG.1  The resolution states that “Citizen input and oversight are crucial for 
transparency and accountability.” It further states: 
 
For this purpose, in addition to its other powers, the Commission may: 1) request detailed 
expenditure plans for tax proceeds annually, which shall be provided to it as early in the budget 
process as feasible; 2) make recommendations to the City Manager and the City Council as to the 
rate at which the tax should be set and how any tax proceeds should be spent; and 3) obtain a 
report on actual expenditures. 
 
Regarding Measure GG, the most recent budget information provided to the Commission was a 

December 2020 Year-End budget report dated December 2, 2020.   

Regarding Measure FF, in January 2021, the Fire Department presented the Commission with a 

preliminary budget overview and presented an informal working group of the Commission a 

detailed, but still preliminary, version of the budget in February 2021.  To date, the Commission 

has not been provided with the final FY 22 Measure GG or FF budget, as approved by Council in 

June 2021, despite requests by Chair Bedolla at nearly every DFSC meeting.2  In addition, at its 

September 22, 2021, meeting, the Commission informally requested that the Fire Department 

provide a Measure FF implementation plan;3  in response, the Department promised more 

information, however only ad hoc updates have since been provided. 

                                                           
1 Resolution No. 69,575-N.S, which can be found here: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/paFiles/cqFiles/index.html. 
2 In addition, a 2/24/21 memo to Council adopted by the Commission containing preliminary FF budget 
recommendations was never transmitted to Council.  When the Commission became aware of the 
situation, it slightly amended the memo on 12/1/21 but, as of the Commission’s January 26, 2022, 
meeting, that memo still had not been transmitted to Council. 

3 The Commission was poised to unanimously adopt this as an action item but, after discussion about 

protocol, the motion was withdrawn on grounds that the Commission need only vote when the 

Commission is sending a memo to the Council.  The meeting minutes did not capture this discussion, 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/paFiles/cqFiles/index.html


 
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

3 
 

 

The Commission appreciates the strain that the Covid pandemic has placed on staff, as well as 

the challenge of managing the new influx of funds from Measure FF, and has therefore been 

patient despite a lack of information that has prevented the Commission from fulfilling its 

duties for more than the past year.  At this point, however, as we head into another budget 

cycle, we believe that it is reasonable to expect that the information begin to flow. 

The City’s Budget Manager has proposed to begin having department budget presentations to 

the Council’s Budget and Finance Policy Committee in April.4  The Council will hold a public 

hearing on the FY 23 and FY 24 proposed budgets on May 10.  To perform its oversight 

responsibilities, the Commission will need to receive this information in the same timeframes. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
There is no direct environmental impact of this recommendation.  

 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The rationale is to ensure that the Commission and the City not only stay within the letter of 

the law but the spirit. This Citizen Commission is supposed to provide oversight. Without 

budget data and input into the budget, the City may not be in compliance with the two 

measures. Even with the currently proposed review cycles, middle of the year and end of the 

year, there is no ability to provide further input, modifications, nor address ad hoc requests 

from the community.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
Since most financial systems require set up of annual budgets and they can output 
results with minimal staff time, no other actions were considered.  

  

                                                           
stating only that the motion was made and seconded and “After discussion, motion was withdrawn by 

maker.” 

4 January 27, 2022, memo submitted by Sharon  Friedrichsen,  Budget  Manager, to the City Manager on 
Proposed  FY  2023-2024  Biennial  Budget  Development  Schedule. Available at: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/2022-01-
27%20Item%203%20Budget%20Calendar%20-%20Budget.pdf.   

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/2022-01-27%20Item%203%20Budget%20Calendar%20-%20Budget.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/2022-01-27%20Item%203%20Budget%20Calendar%20-%20Budget.pdf


 
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

4 
 

 
 
CITY MANAGER 
The City Manager [TYPE ONE] concurs with / takes no position on the content and 
recommendations of the Commission’s Report. [OR] Refer to the budget process. 

Note:  If the City Manager does not (a) concur, (b) takes any other position, or (c) refer to 

the budget process, a council action report must be prepared. Indicate under the CITY 

 

 

MANAGER heading, “See companion report.”  Any time a companion report is submitted, 
both the commission report AND the companion report are Action reports. 

 
 

CONTACT PERSON 
[Name], [Title], [Department] 
 



1 
 

February 15, 2022 

To: Keith May, Secretary, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

From: Nancy Rader, Commissioner 

cc: Members, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 

Re: Questions Regarding the Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) 
 

To facilitate an informed discussion item on the CWPP on the February meeting agenda, I 
wanted to outline my questions regarding the Scope of Work for the CWPP as it relates to the 
Commission’s responsibilities.  I am hoping that, by transmitting this memo significantly in 
advance of the meeting, you will have an opportunity to respond in writing at least a day in 
advance of the meeting.   

Larger Context and Background 

By resolution of the City Council, the DFSC is designated as the Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
for Expenditure Measure FF funds, as it is for Measure GG.1  The resolution provides, among 
other things, that the Commission may request detailed expenditure plans for tax proceeds and 
make recommendations to the City Manager and the City Council as to how any tax proceeds 
should be spent. 

The full Commission has never engaged in a focused discussion of what it believes should be 
priorities for the expenditure of Measure FF funds and, indeed, to date has not been provided 
with detailed expenditure plans for Measure FF, including, to my knowledge, any overall 
rationale for the priorities reflected in the initial FY 22 Measure FF budget.  Thus, the 
Commission has not engaged in a discussion of priorities among many possible activities related 
to wildfire prevention and preparedness -- including vegetation management, reducing the 
ignitability of structures (“home hardening”), promoting evacuation routes (including the Safe 
Passages program) and public warning systems – let alone the other activities that Measure FF 
funds may be used to address:  firefighting, emergency medical response, 9-1-1 
communications services, and hazard mitigation. 

The City has signed a contract with Wildland Resource Management to prepare its CWPP,  
which could help to inform the Commission’s recommendations for Measure FF priorities, 
depending on its intended scope. The scope of work for the CWPP states that it will “meet or 

 
1 Resolution No. 69,575-N.S, which can be found here: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/paFiles/cqFiles/index.html. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/paFiles/cqFiles/index.html


2 
 

exceed the required steps outlined in the handbook ‘Preparing a Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan,’” which was prepared by the Western Governors’ Association.2   

The WGA handbook states that CWPPs “may address issues such as wildfire response, hazard 
mitigation, community preparedness, or structure protection—or all of the above.”3  It states 
that “the minimum requirements for a CWPP” (emphasis in original) are: 

(1) Collaboration: A CWPP must be collaboratively developed by local and state 
government representatives, in consultation with federal agencies and other 
interested parties.  (“As early as possible, core team members should contact and 
seek active involvement from key stakeholders and constituencies such as: City 
Council members, Resource Advisory Committees, Homeowners Associations—
particularly those representing subdivisions in the WUI,” etc.4) 
 

(2) Prioritized Fuel Reduction: A CWPP must identify and prioritize areas for hazardous 
fuel reduction treatments and recommend the types and methods of treatment that 
will protect one or more at-risk communities and essential infrastructure. 

 
(3) Treatment of Structural Ignitability: A CWPP must recommend measures that 

homeowners and communities can take to reduce the ignitability of structures 
throughout the area addressed by the plan. 

The CWPP scope of work seems to focus on the development of a “Wildfire Hazard Summary” 
based on a geospatial hazard and risk assessment that will prioritize each geographic region of 
concern (apparently within Berkeley) for wildfire hazards.  The scope otherwise references 
possible projects only vaguely (for example, Task 4 is “determining priority of projects such as 
evacuation corridors, perimeter fuel break, life safety, property damage, natural resources, 
funding, etc.” and the appended “Project Overview” table includes reference to “Homes, 
business & critical infrastructure at risk” and “Local preparedness & firefighting capabilities”). 

While the scope is arguably broad enough to address Berkeley’s existing related programs, 
including our emergency alert system, outdoor warning system, Safe Passages program, and 
home inspection program, there is no specific reference to these programs.  The scope does not 
appear to address broader concerns, such as reducing ignition threats posed by electrical utility 
infrastructure, ensuring redundancy of critical infrastructure and communications, and 
developing firefighting capabilities despite brief references to some of these things.  Thus, while 
the CWPP appears to be a far less comprehensive planning effort than those prepared by some 

 
2 “Preparing a Community Wildfire Protection Plan,” Western Governors Association (2004).  Available at 
https://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/communities/documents/cwpphandbook.pdf. 
3 WGA handbook, p. 2. 
4 The WGA handbooks states, on p. 5:  “(Emphasis added.) 



3 
 

other cities in wildfire-urban interface areas,5 the intended scope is unclear.  If the scope is 
intended to be broad, a considerable amount of work would need to be accomplished in 
working sessions #3 and #4. 

Questions re CWPP & Process 

1. Where in the process does the DFS Commission fit in?  Task 1 is to “Convene Decision-
makers and Interested Parties.” The “core CWPP advisory group” consists of decision 
makers (local government, fire department and CAL FIRE).  The role of “interested 
parties” in the CWPP development process is not clear, although a Public Draft CWPP 
document will be circulated electronically for public comment as part of Working 
Session #5.  
 

2. Can the CWPP process inform the FY 23 Measure FF budget?  The consultants have a 
wealth of experience on these issues in the East Bay area (including UC land within 
Berkeley) and elsewhere.  Based on this experience, and having a general understanding 
of Berkeley’s topography, population, vegetation, etc., is it possible for the consultants 
to opine on what they believe are likely to emerge as priority activities under the CWPP 
early in the budget cycle (e.g., April)?  Specifically, can they opine on what Berkeley can 
do to reduce the threats from wildfire most substantially and quickly? 
 

3. What is the CWPP’s primary focus?  Will the Wildfire Hazard Summary focus primarily 
on fuel load reductions (prioritizing specific reduction areas based on associated hazards 
such as egress) and developing strategies for accomplishing fuel load reductions?  Or 
will it also get into details relating to Berkeley’s existing related programs, such as our 
emergency alert system, outdoor warning system, and Safe Passages program? Will the 
consultants evaluate Berkeley’s current home inspection program? If so, will the CWPP 
establish priorities among all of these endeavors?  
 

4. What could or will the assessment strategy and action plan include?   
 

a. Assuming that a major priority (if not the sole focus) will be removing fuel loads 
on public and private land in Berkeley,6 could or will the strategy: 
 

i. include a cost estimate for treating all hazardous fuel-build-up areas in 
Berkeley’s WUI area. 

 
5 See, e.g., the City of Laguna Beach’s 2019 Wildfire Mitigation and Fire Safety report, which includes short 
term, intermediate term and long term goals, available here. 
6 The WGA handbook notes on p. 3 that “The wildland–urban interface (WUI) is commonly described as the 
zone where structures and other human development meet and intermingle with undeveloped wildland or 
vegetative fuels. This WUI zone poses tremendous risks to life, property, and infrastructure in associated 
communities and is one of the most dangerous and complicated situations firefighters face.”  (Emphasis 
added.) 

https://www.lagunabeachcity.net/home/showpublisheddocument/10278/637762039613770000


4 
 

 
ii. address policy and implementation issues related to removing these fuels 

as expeditiously as possible, such as:   
 

− use of Measure FF funds;  
− potential income or wealth qualification criteria for applying 

Measure FF funds to private lands;  
− involving community groups in a grant process;  
− an evaluation of whether and how CEQA requirements come into 

play; 
− means of preventing vegetation regrowth without chemicals; and   
− re-vegetation and erosion control. 

 
b. Could or will the plan address whether and how to expand Berkeley’s Fire Code 

to require property owners to reduce risks in high fuel load areas beyond 30 or 
100 feet of structures (which are not currently addressed in the code)? 

 
c. If the action plan will address home hardening, could or will the plan address 

whether and how to expand Berkeley’s Fire Code to require major home 
hardening investments (e.g., roofs and siding) upon property transfer?  

 
d. Could or will the plan recommend a list of flammable or otherwise hazardous 

plants that should be prohibited in Berkeley?  



 
 
Questions re CWPP & Process  
 
Commissioner Rader submitted a set of questions to staff regarding the Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan (CWPP) project. Given that the development of a CWPP is a complex community 
driven process and that there are many components to developing an effective CWPP, concise 
responses cannot comprehensively address all the issues. Below are responses that staff has 
provided for some additional context and a starting point for discussion of the issues contemplated 
in Commissioner Rader’s questions; a discussion that will continue as the CWPP is developed and 
finalized over the next 2 years.  
 
1. Where in the process does the DFS Commission fit in? Task 1 is to “Convene Decision-makers 
and Interested Parties.” The “core CWPP advisory group” consists of decision makers (local 
government, fire department and CAL FIRE). The role of “interested parties” in the CWPP 
development process is not clear, although a Public Draft CWPP document will be circulated 
electronically for public comment as part of Working Session #5.  
 
The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission can expect participation in the CWPP development 
process in the following ways: 

1. At least one commissioner will be a representative on the Core Committee.  The Core 
Committee is the group of stakeholders that steer the process.  This is could include 
representatives from City departments, the commission, private homeowner associations, 
etc. 

2. Public input sessions will likely be held at Disaster and Fire Safety Commission meetings. 
3. Report/outlines/project lists or other work products will be shared with the Commission as 

appropriate to facilitate input. 
 
There will be 5 work sessions for the core group not including the public input sessions (at 
Commission meetings).  By the time of working session 2, we expect that the first public input 
session at the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission will be held.  There will be more than one public 
input session at the Commission meeting. 
 
 
2. Can the CWPP process inform the FY 23 Measure FF budget? The consultants have a wealth of 
experience on these issues in the East Bay area (including UC land within Berkeley) and elsewhere. 
Based on this experience, and having a general understanding of Berkeley’s topography, population, 
vegetation, etc., is it possible for the consultants to opine on what they believe are likely to emerge 
as priority activities under the CWPP early in the budget cycle (e.g., April)? Specifically, can they 
opine on what Berkeley can do to reduce the threats from wildfire most substantially and quickly?  
 
The CWPP process doesn’t align to the City budget cycle.  And it doesn’t make sense to alter the 
CWPP process to align as the goal is to move forward expeditiously towards a finished CWPP rather 
than to wait for alignment.   
 



Since the risk assessment phase of the CWPP project is the longest period, including data collection 
and time needed to develop and weigh factors, the commission can expect that it will be at least 6 
months before Commission will enter the process at a Commission meeting. 
 
Once the action plan is developed (and maybe not yet even finalized), budget considerations for the 
identified projects start to take a role. We are likely 12-18 months out from that. 
 
These are informed time estimates, but they are still estimates, and depending on issues that arise, 
the timelines could vary from what is described above. 
 
3. What is the CWPP’s primary focus? Will the Wildfire Hazard Summary focus primarily on fuel 
load reductions (prioritizing specific reduction areas based on associated hazards such as egress) 
and developing strategies for accomplishing fuel load reductions? Or will it also get into details 
relating to Berkeley’s existing related programs, such as our emergency alert system, outdoor 
warning system, and Safe Passages program? Will the consultants evaluate Berkeley’s current home 
inspection program? If so, will the CWPP establish priorities among all of these endeavors?  
 
The components of what makes up a CWPP are well defined.  
 
A CWPP must consider vegetation management and structure hardening as require by Healthy 
Forest Restoration Act. 
 
For Berkeley, since we are part of Alameda county, it will make sense that we will consider other 
issues as addressed in the March 2015 Alameda County CWPP. 

1. Information, education and collaborative planning (studies) 
2. Emergency preparedness and evacuation planning  (but not engineering studies) 

 
One aspect to remember in understanding the scope of the CWPP is that identified projects will 
affect more than an individual - larger multi-parcel (vs. individual parcels). Projects could possibly 
have impacts on both private and public land. 
 
The CWPP does not directly evaluate existing programs. Consultants will facilitate input and there 
could be self-evaluation by stakeholders during the CWPP development process. 
 
 
4. What could or will the assessment strategy and action plan include?  
 
The CWPP hazard assessment will identify the spatial distribution of hazards, (how bad it is, where?) 
The CWPP process also functions to facilitate the gathering of projects and to organize priorities.  
The primary purpose of the CWPP is to communicate the community’s priorities. 
 
Given this scope of the CWPP, the below questions can best be described as falling within “the next 
step” after a CWPP development.  The CWPP will not provide cost estimates, address policy or 
implementation issues, or decide how to change fire code. The CWPP could identify those as 
projects that need to be completed, but would not address them directly. 
 



a. Assuming that a major priority (if not the sole focus) will be removing fuel loads on public and 
private land in Berkeley,6 could or will the strategy:  
 
i. include a cost estimate for treating all hazardous fuel-build-up areas in Berkeley’s WUI area.  



 
ii. address policy and implementation issues related to removing these fuels as expeditiously as 
possible, such as:  
 
 
− use of Measure FF funds;  
− potential income or wealth qualification criteria for applying Measure FF funds to private lands;  
− involving community groups in a grant process;  
− an evaluation of whether and how CEQA requirements come into play;  
− means of preventing vegetation regrowth without chemicals; and  
− re-vegetation and erosion control.  
 
b. Could or will the plan address whether and how to expand Berkeley’s Fire Code to require 
property owners to reduce risks in high fuel load areas beyond 30 or 100 feet of structures (which 
are not currently addressed in the code)?  
 
 
c. If the action plan will address home hardening, could or will the plan address whether and how to 
expand Berkeley’s Fire Code to require major home hardening investments (e.g., roofs and siding) 
upon property transfer?  
 
 
d. Could or will the plan recommend a list of flammable or otherwise hazardous plants that should 
be prohibited in Berkeley?  
 



<"~\ Governor'~Officeofd Research 
( ~ _J Planning an · .......... 

CALIFORNIA _ • Commission 
Public Utilities 

Safer from Wildÿres in 2 31 
Safer from Wildÿres is an interagency partnership between Insurance Commissioner Ricardo Lara and the 
emergency response and readiness agencies in Governor Gavin Newsom’s administration to protect lives, 
homes, and businesses by reducing wildÿre risk. 

With California experiencing devastating, climate change-intensiÿed wildÿres, homes and businesses need insurance they can rely on. 
Commissioner Lara is using every tool available to improve insurance for our communities. Drawing on the direct experience of ÿrst responders 
and the latest research on wildÿres, the partnership created a consistent approach to reducing risk with a list of achievable and e°ective actions 
to help make existing homes and businesses safer from wildÿres. The ultimate goal is protecting consumers by reducing wildÿre risk in their 
communities, making insurance available and a°ordable for all Californians. 

This “ground up” approach for wildÿre resilience has three layers of protection — for the structure, the immediate surroundings, and the 
community — to prevent wildÿres from catching and spreading to other homes and businesses in the neighborhood. 

• Class-A Fire rated roof 
• Maintain a 5 foot ember-resistant zone around a home 

(including fencing within 5 feet) 
• Noncombustible 6 inches at the bottom of exterior walls 
• Ember and fire-resistant vents (See Low-Cost Retrofit List, 

and Chapter 7A) 
• Upgraded windows (Double paned or added shutters) 
• Enclosed eaves 

Protecting the 
structure 1 Working together as a 

community 3

• A community should have clearly deÿned boundary and a local 
risk assessment in consultation with the local ÿre district or state 
ÿre agency; an identiÿed evacuation route, cleared of vegetative 
overgrowth, and evacuation plan contingencies; clear funding 
sources to implement community mitigation activities and 
meet clear risk reduction goals; and integrated and up-to-date 
local planning documents pertinent to community wildÿre risk. 

• Current examples include the Fire Risk Reduction Community 
designation under development by the Board of Forestry, 
Firewise USA communities in good standing, and 
Shelter-in-Place designations. 

Commissioner Lara is working to increase available 
incentives for wildÿre safety. To view the list of insurance 
companies currently offering discounts visit 
insurance.ca.gov. 

• Cleared vegetation and debris from under decks 
• Removal of combustible sheds and other outbuildings 

from the immediate surroundings of the home, to at least 
a distance of 30 feet 

• Defensible space compliance (including trimming trees, 
removal of brush and debris from yard, and compliance 
with state law and local ordinances) 

Protecting the immediate 
surroundings 2

http://www.insurance.ca.gov/01-consumers/105-type/95-guides/03-res/Insurers-Currently-Offering-Discounts.cfm
https://www.readyforwildfire.org/wp-content/uploads/Low-cost-Retrofit-List-Update-5-14-21.pdf


DFSC Presentation - Hillside Fire Safety Group

Discussion Agenda

● Risk Assessment

● Inventory of Groves and Trees

● Catastrophic Scenarios

● Recommended Plan of Action

● Use of Measure FF

● Videos of Progress

DFSC Meeting

● February 23, 2022

● Zoom Meeting

1

HFSG Risk Assessment
The Eucalyptus tree is uniquely dangerous

● It is extremely flammable

● It produces 10X the debris of other species

● A fire on the ground can quickly climb the tree into the canopy

● Winds carry flaming embers faster and wider than other tree species

Berkeley is particularly vulnerable with approximately 950 eucalyptus trees in our North Berkeley Hill Area (the Northside)

● Six groves on UCB & LBNL property along “The Line of Fire” (415 trees)

● Six groves on 98 private lots  (470 trees)

● Two groves in City parks (40 trees)

● Two street side City locations (4 trees)

● Seven small groups on nine other private lots (30 trees)

Cleaning up under the Eucalyptus trees is an essential first step because it eliminates one of two ways that a catastrophic canopy fire can start- a fire 
on the ground climbing the trees

● Clear all debris from the ground

● Strip loose bark 15 feet up from the ground

● Remove saplings, low branches, and subordinate trees

The only way to eliminate the second cause of a catastrophic canopy fire from the Eucalyptus trees - embers in the wind - is to remove the trees 2



3

North Berkeley Eucalyptus 

Legend
Small group

     LBNL/UCB
     Private
     City

 

4
Source:  Henry DeNero   

Conditions on the Ground



“A fire on the 
Hill could burn 
all the way to 
the Bay” 

- Former Fire 
Chief Brannigan

5

 Catastrophic           
Scenario-

A Canopy Fire Driven 
by the Diablo Wind

Recommended Plan of Action
We recommend that The City of Berkeley adopt an action plan in three overlapping phases designed to remove the threat of a catastrophic fire storm 
taking dozens of lives and destroying much of the City

1. Phase 1: This winter and spring. Clean up under ALL Eucalyptus trees on the northside, using Measure FF to clean up both City and private 
properties

Note: The Parks Department has committed to clean up in the two parks; and both LBNL and UCB have committed to clean up their groves. 

2. Phase 2: 2022 to 2024. Remove all of the approximately 545 Eucalyptus trees on the northside on City and private property, again using 
Measure FF

Note: LBNL is seeking $2.9 Million from Cal Fire to remove all 1,500 Eucalyptus trees on its property. We have asked UCB to remove the Eucalyptus 
trees on its property along The Line of Fire

3. Phase 3: 2022 to 2027. Address other fire risks
-Continue the Fire Department’s existing home-hardening program
-Mandate ongoing maintenance
-Redline exit routes and narrow streets

Note: We will ask UCB to remove all Eucalyptus trees from its property. We will ask the Regional Parks Authority to remove all Eucalyptus trees 
from Wildcat Canyon and Tilden Parks; then to begin removing all flammable ground debris

6



Why Use Measure FF
● It was passed overwhelmingly by the voters to reduce fire risk

● There can be no greater fire risk than the Eucalyptus trees and groves on the northside

● Cleaning up under and then removing the Eucalyptus trees can be accomplished in two to three years for a fraction of one 
year’s Measure FF taxpayer funds

● The risk is a clear public danger; arguably greater than all others, including the Hayward Fault

● There is strong precedent for using public funds on private property when it is for a public good

● It is unfair to force 100 homeowners to bear the cost of saving a large portion of the City from a catastrophic event

● Even if it was fair to require private property owners to bear the cost, it would take too long to go through the process. This 
threat needs to be removed now, before the catastrophe occurs

7

We have made some progress 

8

HFSG conducted six events with over 200 
UC Berkeley student volunteers and the 
use of The City’s Chipper Bin to remove 
eucalyptus bark and debris from “Hidden 
Canyon,” arguably the most dangerous 
location in Berkeley and perhaps the State

LBNL hired a tree contractor to clean up 
their side of the upper canyon

Together, half the canyon has been cleared 
and is now grasses, rather than a thick 
layer of highly flammable debris

We plan to continue these events pending 
City action to clean up the groves



9

Link to the video:   2019a Hidden Canyon (edited).m4v

10

Link to the video:   2022a Hidden Canyon (edited).mov



HFSG thanks you for your support!
HFSG is dedicated to fire safety for our community in the 
Berkeley neighborhood surrounding the former Hillside 
School, and to advocate for fuel reduction and other safety 
measures on both private and public properties.

The area we represent includes over 1,000 addresses and 
an estimated 2,500 residents. 

For more information about the Hillside Fire Safety Group 
please complete our contact information form and visit our 
website:

HFSG Web:    www.berkeleyhillsidefiresafety.org
HFSG Email:   info@berkeleyhillsidefiresafety.org
HFSG Voice:  (415) 340-0152

11


	DFSC Agenda Packet 22-02-23
	DFSC Agenda Packet 22-02-23
	DFSC Agenda 22-02-23
	DFSC Agenda Packet 22-02-23
	DRAFT DFSC Minutes 22-01-26
	DFSC Staff Report2.23.22
	IPM_Guidelines_2021
	Rader Memo to May re CWPP (2-15-22)
	Safer-from-Wildfires-one-pager (Feb 2022)


	DFSC Memo to City Manager re FF Budget Oversight Feb 23, 2022
	Response to Questions re CWPP

	HFSG - DFSC Presentation 2022 02 23 (Portrait)



